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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private
Limited ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Fules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Paras Healthcare {Ranchi) Private Limited, on
the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors’ Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial pesition, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 1332 of the Act
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole
are free from material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited, on
the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

#  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 187 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ({'the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph
13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended);

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited, on
the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 1684(2) of the Act;

fi  The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
13(h){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended);

g} With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company, as detailed in note 32 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impacts of
pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at 31 March 2024,

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024

iii. There were no amaunts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

iv.a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 44¢ to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

b.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 44d to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

6 Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Charterad Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited, on
the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

vi.  As stated in note 46 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 01 April 2023, has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in such software except that, the audit trail feature was not
enabled at database level to log any direct data changes. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect
of accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

— o

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507882

UDIN: 24507892BKEITX3478

Place: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 2024
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the infarmation and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that;

(i) (a)

()

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right -of -use assets under
which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years,
which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment,
and relevant details of right -of -use assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Order') is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment including right-

of-use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

() No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during

(iii)

(iv)
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the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed as compared to book records.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 50.00 million by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iij{b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Dompang:,ﬁ__’ .,
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd}

(wi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
detaermine whether they are accurate or completa.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute,

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

(b)

(i)

(xiii)

(i)

(xv)

fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit,

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received hy the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to

it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicaible to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
182 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi){a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

(d)

(xvii)

Act 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a)(b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial years amounting to INR 140.57 million and INR 265.52 million
respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting

(xix)

Chartered Accountants a5

under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other infarmation in the accompanying financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, and unconditional support letter provided by the Holding Company to extend
operational and financial support to the Company as referred to in note 35 to the accompanying
financial statements, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Gompany is not
capable of meeting its liabiliies existing at the:datémf balance sheet as and when they fall due
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

(xx)

(xxi)

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet data,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable to the Gompany,

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo.: 001076N/N500013

—_— \ m’l‘

Tarun Gupta

Partner

Membership Mo.: 507892

——

UDIN: 24507892BKEITA3476

Place: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Paras
Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Private Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference fo
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Nole require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4, Ourauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

5. \We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements .

Chariered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Paras
Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 (cont'd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statementis

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2}
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assels
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such control were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & CGo LLP
Charterad Accountants
Firm's Registration No.; 001076N/N500013

Tarun Gupta

Fartner
Mermbership No.: 507892

LUDIN: 24507892BKEITA3476

Flace: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 2024

Chartersd Accountants



Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

CIM: UBS ] TIHRZOITITO072052

Ralanee sheet as at 31 March 2024

(Al amounts ave in INIL million, unless otherwise stated)

Parliculars Maotes A af g
31 Mareh 2024 31 Macel 2023
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Pruperty, plant and equipment 1 ™4 TT0.A5
Kighl-ofuse assels 5 460,16 478,059
apital work-in-progress i 961 46.23
Intangihle assets 7 (.08 024
Financizl assels
Oiheer financial assets 3 0.54 063
Mon-cursent (@ assels (nef) 9 10.4% 4.3%
Cither non-curient assets 10 |.&0 =13
Total non-current assels 1,229.92 1,300
Current assels
Inventarics 1 25.27 17,50
Finuncial assets
I'rade receivables 12 133.43 30.42
ash und cash equivalents 13 523 gal
Bank balances other thun cash and cash eguivalents 14 1.00 0,95
Cler finaneial assels i 917 775
her curent assels 10 G - 216 2335
Total current assets 176,26 G800
Total asscis S 1.406.15 1,369.91
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
LEquity
Eguity share capital 13 0,10 010
[ Ither equity le . {1,277.75) {95085
‘Totlal equity (1,277.65) (U50.85)
Liahilities
Mon-enrrent liabilities
Financial labilities
[urrowings 7 164913 1.3640.71
I.euse liabilitics 5 T25.52 65785
(ther Mngncial labilities & 0.50 1.50
Provisions 19 4.52 251
Tatal noo-curvent labilities 237067 206887
Current linhililies
Finuncial liahilities
Horrowings ITh 2135 -
1ense lisbilitics 5 4561 4213
Trade payakles 0
- Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises; and 1397 9.55
- “Tolal outstanding dues of eredilons other thun micro enterprises and smull enterprises 157.22 14268
Other Mnancial labilities L& 24.07 4608
Oither current liabilities 21 14.0%9 10,12
Provisions 1% 1.85 1.53
Total currvent liabilities 34, 16 25189
Total equity and liabilities 1,406,148 1,369.81
Summany of material accuunting policy information 3

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial stulements.

A per our report of even date aftached

Fur Waller Chandiols & Co LLP
Clhariered Acconnlonts
Firm Registration Mo FI10TH NIWS00013

m—
"o

Tarun Gupia

Partner |

hlembership Mo, 507852

Place: Ciurugram
Drate: 13 June 2024

For and on behalf of Deard of Directors of
Taras Healtheare {Ranchi) Private Limited

i, .‘imllly Nreili}raniuk:d Sajan
I recion
M ; DEGI903

Directar

Ralesh Kunar Singh
CF

Place: Gurngram
Drate: 13 June 2024

Milshil Sharma

DI ; 19689202




Puras Healtheare {Ranchi) Private Limited

CIN: UBSIIDHR2ZM TP TCOT2032

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 Murch 2024
{All amounts are in INIE million, unless otherwise stated)

o - For the vear ended For the year ended
o Botes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 22 Bl i 20007
Oitfer income 3 1.14 1.34
Total ineeme ~ H47.53 Ja14l
Expenses
Purchases of sluck-in-lrade 24 140, 14 0496
Changes in inventories of stock-in-rrady 23 [6.84) {1260}
Employee benefits expense 26 14a.11 5.0
Finunce cosls 27 19808 159.70
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 14573 11004
Relainers and consullunts fee 270,57 206.62
(Mher expenses 28 218.62 141,52
Total expenses 1,174.34 TO5.04
Luoss hefore tax [(326.51) (404.23)
Tux expense

Current vear 30 - -
T.ass for the year {A) [(326.51) f4|]4.23'!-
Other comprehensive income
Ttesnis that will not he reclassified to profit or loss and their related income tax effects
Remeasurements of delined benetit plans (028 (11.05)
Less: Income fax relating le lems that will nol be reclassified to profit ur loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, nel of tax (B) {0.29} (0.05)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (A+E) = [320.50) (404.28)
Earnings per cquity share (face value of INR 10 each)

Drasic and diluted (INE per shace) . 3l (32,051.00) (40423000
Surunary of materiul accounting policy information 3

The accompanying nules are an integral parl of Biese fin ancil slalements.

Az per our report of even date allached

For Walker Chandiol & Co LLFP
Chartered Accounlanis
Firm Registration Mo 00LOTOMMS00013

_.-o—'—"'_'___#
| Qe
Tarun Gupta

Purlier
tlemberslip Mo, SOTR02

Place: Gurigram
Irate: 13 June 2024

For and on hehalfof Board of Dircetors of
Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

Dy, Santy Meelivanickal Sajan
[irector
DI ; DRGE9U05

Ralesh K
CHO

Place: Ciurugram
Date; 13 June 2024

Milhil Sharma

DM @ 0S0BR2592




Pavas Mealtheare (Ranehi) Private Limited
CIN: USS1I0TRI0ITFTCNT2052
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024

(Al amounts ave in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

A, Cash flow [rom ﬁ]n&ra[ing aclivities

=

For the year ended

Lias belore Lux

Adjustiments [
Depreciation and amortization expense
Finance costs
Lass allowance
Interest ncome

Adjustments for changes in working capital:
-in inventorics
-in frade receivables
-in boins and assels
-in frace payables
-in provisions and other liabilitics

31 March 2024

For the year en ded
31 Maurch 2023

Cash wsed in operations
Incoane laxes puid {nel)

Met eush wsed in operating activities (A)

Cash flow Mrom invesling aclivitivs

Payments for purchase of property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets (including
capital work-in-progress, capiiul advances and payahle for pirchase of property, plant and
equipment )

Proceeds fromy (investments) in bank depuosils

Interest received

Met eush wsed in investing activities (K)

~ Cash flow from finapciog aclivities

TProceeds of non currenl bormowings

Fepuyment of non current horrowings

Payment of interest on lcase liabilitics

Finance costs paid

Met cash generaled from financing activities ()

Met (decrease) / inerease in cash and cash equivalents (A-+B+C)

. Cash and cash equivalewts al the bepginning of the year

Balance with banks:
= Oy currenl accounls
Cash on hand

. Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year

Dulance with banks:
- (I current accounts
Cash on hand

(32651 (A04.23)
145.73 11004
198,06 158770

906 -
o (0.04) (0,59
26,30 (135.48)
{7.41) [14.54)
(L12.06) [29.28)
{1.14) (8.71)
3890 9015
549 0,90
{49.86) (57.96)
{610 (3.71)
(55.96) (91.67)
(9034 (347.46)
[0.05) 2948
(.04 1.34
{90.35) (316.64)
23149 473,84
{229 -
{14.27) (43.59)
(42.08) [18.75)
142,47 411.50
) (3.4} 3.19
B30 544
{.37 0.04
B.67 548
4,54 B30
0.69 0.47
= 5.23 8.67
 [Eag j 3.19

Met (decrease) / inevease in eash and cash equivalents (E-IV

{(Thin space S baan intenstonaile fef Dloank)




Paris Healthenre (Ranchi) Private Limited
CIM: USS1IOHR201 TP TC072032

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Mlarch 2024
(Al amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Motes:

| The cash Oow statement has heen prepared under the indirect mcthod sel ouf

133 of the Companies Act, 2013

2 Change in Habilitics arising fom finuncing activilies:

in [ndian Accounting Standard 7 on Statement of cash Nows us notificd under scefion

Particulurs

Horrowings

Clash Nows

Dorrowings

Fur (he year eoded For e vear cnded

iy 31 Mareh 2024 31 Muarch 2023
Opening halanee

130071 324.20
Lease labilities TIU8 TN
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 3149 A73.54
Fepayment of non-cucrent horrowings (2,29
Payment of interesl an lease liabilitics {442T) (43.5%)
Finanes costs paid (42.00) {1875}
Mon-cash adjusiments
Tnterest expenses towurds lease linbilitics 7342 7227
Tnterest expense on borrowings from baiks (ineluding other borrowing costs) 42.00 8743
Inferest gxpense oa loan tuken from related party BOL58
Closing balance

1,676 4% 1,366.71
Leuse liahilities T3 73908

Summary of material accounting pelicy intormalion

The accompenying notes e an integral part of these financiul slatements.

A per our reporl ol even date allached
For Wallker Chandink & Co LLF
Chartered Accountants

Firm Repistration Mo O0107EMNMNIN0013

Tarun Gapta
Pariner :
Membership Mo, 507

Place: Gurigrum
Trate: 13 June 2024

Tor and on behalt of Bourd of [irectoes of
Paras Menltheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

5

e

v, Sanly Neeliyaniclal Sajan Milchil Sliarma
Iireclor [Hreclor
DIM ; ORGEIGE05 D - (DEES2S2

Place: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 2024




Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited
CIN: USSTIOHRZOLTITCOTI032

Statement of Changes in Bauity Tor the year eoded 31 Murch 2024

(A amounts are in INR million, unless otheryise stated)

A

Equily share capilal

Farticulars

Az at 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

—— " Mumber af shares Amount Mumber of shares Amonunt
At the hegmning and end of the year 140,000 Do 10,8600 0.in
Criler equity
Adtributahle to the equity shareholders
Piirlieatara l'tesnn.rcs ol surplus Total
o Retained earnings :
Balance at 01 April 2022 [Z46.67) [546.67)
Lioss for the year [404.23) (404.23)
Uher comprehensive income for the year

Re-measurenent on delined hencfil plans {nat of L (.05) {0.05)
Balance af 31 March 2023 (450,95} [F50.95)
Luoas for the yeiu [126.51) (326.51)
Cither comprehensive income for the year

Fe measurement on defined bencfit pluns (net of b} 0,29} )]
Galance at 31 March 2024 [1,277.75) (1,277.75)

Summary of matcrial accounting policy informalion

The aceompanying notes are a0 integral piut of these [mancial statements

As per our report of even dute altached
For Walker Chundink & Co LLF
Chartered Accountanis

Lirn Registration Mo; 001076MN 500013

— \Wout

Tarun Gugia
Partncr
Membership Mo, 507592

Place: Gurigram
Linte: 13 June 2024

P

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Paras Lenltheare (Banchi) Private Timited

Dr. Sunty Neeliyanicknl Sajan

Dirzotor

LI DRG395

Place: Gurugrum
Diate: 13 June 2024

hil Bharma

MM : GPARD2GE



Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limifed
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CTN: - USS1L0HRZM T TCO72032

1. Corporate Information

Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited (‘the Company) is a company domiciled in India, with its repistered oflice
situated at 1st Floor, Tower-B, Paras Twin Towers, Golf Course Road, Sector-54, Gurugram-122002, [Haryana. The
Company has been incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Paras Healthcare Private Limited on 29 December
2017. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing healthcare services.

2. Tasis of preparation of financial statements
(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Aet, 2013, (the ‘Act’)
and other relevant provisions ol the Act.

I'he financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on 13 June 2024.
Details of the Company’s accounting policics are included in Note 3.
(ii) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in INR millions, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest millions and two decimals thereof except share data and per share
data, unless otherwise staled.

(iii) DBasis of measurement

‘'hese financial stalements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, excepl for the following items:

| Items B - | Measurement basis - i l
| Net defined benefil (assct)/ liability Present value of defined benefit obligations
Certain financial assets and [inancial liabilitics Amortized cost

(iv) Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) nolifics new standards or amendments to the cxisting standards under
Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules 2015, as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

(v) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurcment principles of Ind AS
requires management lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application ol accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenscs as well as disclosures. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions (o accounting e¢stimates arc
recognised in the period in which the eslimates are revised and in any future periods prospectively.

In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgemenls in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amount reengnised in the financial slatements pertains
Lo

—

a) Useful lives and 1‘&&0?&1‘@};{!&-' v Cof property, plant and equipment and intangible asset
F ok \'\‘“‘

)

{3
The estimaicd useful lives m%i ecoverable 1{"1&1 unts of property, plant and cquipment and intangible ass
| L




Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limiled
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: - USS110HR2017PTC072032

cstimates and assumptlions regarding the expected market outlook, expecied future cash flows, growth rates,
obsolescence, demand, competition, and known technological advances. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciationfamortisation is derived based on an estimate of an assel’s cxpected useful life and the expected residual
value at the end of its life. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets al the end of each reporting period.

h) Impairment of financial asset

At cach balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expecled lite, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking cstimates, the management assesses (he expected credit losses on outstanding receivables.
Further, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the
default risk associated with industry and country in which the cuslomer operates.

¢) Income taxes

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the availability of
futurc taxable prolit apainst which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused
{ax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credit available, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be utilised.

Deferred tax asscts are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that il is no longer probable thal
the related tax benefit will be realized.

Provision for lax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case laws and
the potenlial outcomes of appeals which may be subject to signilicant uncerlainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary
from cxpectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets and therefore the lax charge
in the Statement of Profit and I.oss.

d) Employce benefit obligation

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
appropriate assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality raics. Due to (he complexitics involved in the valuation and its long-
term mature, a defined henefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

e) Lease
Critical judgements in determining the lease term:

Ind AS 116 requires lessees Lo determine (he lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option
to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on
the expected lease lerm on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options
{o extend or lerminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such
as any significant leaschold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease
and the importance of the underlying assel to Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying
asset and the availability of suitable alicrnatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the leasce
term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:




Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: - USS110HR2017PTCO72032

(vi) Measurcment of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial asscts and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect (o the
measurement of fair values. The Company’s Group CFO regularly reviews significant unohservable inputs and valuation
adjuslments.

Tair values are categorised into different levels in a fair valuc hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Tevel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or liability, cither dircetly
(i.e. as prices) or indircetly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobscrvable inputs)

When measuring (he fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair valuc of an asscl or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fuir value measurement is calegorised in ifs entirety in the same level of the [air value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recogniscs transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

(vii) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Shect hased on current / non-current classification.
An assct is classilicd as current when it satisfies any ol the following criteria:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash cquivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scitle a liability for at least twelve
months afler the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the [ollowing crileria:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyele,

b) It is held primarily for the purposc of trading,

¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the seltlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other

oriterin sel out in Schedule 1 to the Companics Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products/ services and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has

ascertained ils operating cycle to be within 12 months for the purpose of current and non- current ekyssitication of assets
and liabilities. R EHAG

£y N
Deferred tax assets and liabilitiegare classifiec as"ni non-current assets and liabilities.
L ! i
|z 3

&) /3




Paras Tealthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: - US5110HR2017PTCO72032

3, Material aceounting policy information
A. Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurcment

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, alter deducting trade discounts
and rebates, any directly aliributable cost of bringing the item Lo its working condition [or its intended use and estimated
cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost ol a sclf-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item Lo working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is locaied,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different uscful lives, then they are accounted for
as scparate items (major components) ol property, plant and equipment. All other repair and mainlcnance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a property, plan and equipment are determined as the
difference between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or cxpense
in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subscquent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow Lo the Company.

(iif) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over
their useful lives mentioned in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, using the written down value except for

leasehold improvements, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The leasehold improvements are depreciated using straight line method over the primary period of the lease or useful
life of the assets (generally 10 years), whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rala basis i.e. [rom (upto) the date on which asset is ready for
use (disposed of).

B. Capital worl-in-progress

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready [or their intended use is recorded as capital work-in-progress hefore
such date. Cost of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are atlributable Lo
consiruction activity in general and can be allocated lo specific property, plant and equipment are included in capital

work-in-progress.

Expenditure against the assets arc not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost,
comprising dircet cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

C. Intangible assets

any. The cost of such assets i
attribulable expenditure to bri

(]

Intangible assets arc stated al acquisifion;pest, net of accumulated amortisation and accumul g
&




Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: - US5110HR2017PTC072032

Amartization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Intangible assets arc amortised @40% p.a on written down value of the assets. The amortisation period, residual value
and the amortisation method are reviewed at least al cach balance sheet date. If the expecled useful life of the assel is
significantly different [rom previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible assel arc determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and recognised as income or expense in the statement of
profit and loss.

D. Inventorics

Inventories of medical drugs, stores and consumables are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventorics and other costs in bringing them io their
present condition and location. The cost of the items constituting the inventory is computed on FIFO basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated sclling expenses.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an itemn-by-item basis.
E. Leases

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an assct (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration”.

Classification of leases

The Company enters inlo lcasing arrangements for various assets, The assessment ofthe leasc is based on several factors,
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased assct at end ol lease term, lessee’s oplion to extend/purchase
ele.

Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use assel and a lease liahility on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use assect is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
dircet costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the assct at the end of the lease
(if any), and any lease payments made in advance ol the lease commencement date (net of any incenlives received).

Subsequent measurement

‘The Company depreciates the right-of-use asscts on a straight-line basis from the leasc commencement date to the earlier
ol the end of the useful life of the right-ol-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Compary also assesses the right-
of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid
at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurcment of the lease liability are made up of fixed
paymenis (including in substance {ixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent Lo in itial
measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-mcasured to reflect any
reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-
measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use assct.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assels using the praghgah-expedicnts.
Instead of recognising a right-ol-yst st 7&@ lcase liability, the payments in relation to theyégrc recoggistd as an

" - B Tk " - "
cxpense in Statement of Profit ar _)&u&s on a\{ﬂ_}mghl—lmc basis over the lease (erm.
. %\
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Paras Healthcare (Ranchi) Private Limited
Notes to financial siatcments for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: - US5110HR2017PTC072032

F. Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurcment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eyuity
instrument of another entity. A financial asset or financial liability is initially mecasured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attribulable to its acquisition or
issue.

‘Irade receivables and debt sccurities are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liahilitics are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party Lo the contractual provisions ol the
instrumennt.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On Inilial recognition, a financial asset is classilicd as measured at:

Amorlised cosl

o  FVOCT —debl investment;

»

FVOUI — equity investment; or
= FVTPL

Financial assels are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial assct is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are mel and is not designated as
at FVTFL:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
Novwes, and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPT) on (he principal amount outstanding.

On inilial recognition of an equity invesiment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably clect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCT — equity investment), This election is
made on an investment- by- investment basis.

All linancial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVIPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset (hat otherwise meets the requirements to be measured al amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best refleets the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

) the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s st'rm;gg%f JEUSCS 01 carning contractual interest income, mainiaining a patfichlarghterest rate
profile, matching the duyd , [inancial assets lo the duration of any related liabili
outllows or realising cagh Hows throygh the sale of the assels;
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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b) how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

c) the risks that alfeet the performance of the husiness model (and the financial assets held within that husiness model)
and how those risks are managed;

d) how managers of the business arc compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the asscts
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

¢) the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expeclations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are nol considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assels.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is cvaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at TVTPL.

Financial asseis: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interesi:

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
“Inierest’ is delined as consideration for the time value of moncy and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liguidity risk and
adminisirative costs), as well as a profit margin.

Tn assessing whether (he contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial assct contains a contractual term
{hat could change the timing or amount of contractual cash [lows such that it would not meet this condition. In making
this assessment, the Company considers:

a) contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

b) terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable inlerest rate features;

¢) prepayment and exlension featurc; and

d) terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows [rom specified assets (e.g. non- recourse featurcs)

Financial assels: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVIPL

These asscts are subscquently measured at [air value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets al amortised cost

These assels are subsequently measured at amortised cosl using the cffective interest method. The amortised cosl is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign cxchange gains and losses and impairment are recogniscd in
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Debt investments at F'VOCI

These asscts are subscquently mcasured al fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method, [oreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recogn ised in statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCL On derecognilion, gains and losses acenmulated in OCI are reclassified to statement of profit and
lozs.

FEquity imvestments at FVOC!

These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in stafement of profit and loss
- @ A l 1
DSSCS are
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Financial liabilitics are classitied as measured at amortised cost or FWTPL.

A financial liability is classificd as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivalive or it is designaled
as such on initial reeognition, Financial liabilitics at FVIPL are measured at [air value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, arc recognised in stalement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subscquently measured
at amorlised cost using the cffective interest method. Interest expense and foreign cxchange gains and losses are
recognised in stalement of profit and loss. Any oain or loss on derceognition is also recognised in statement of profit
and loss. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to (he extent
{hat it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

(iii) Derecognition
Finaneial assel

The Company derecognises a [inancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights (o receive the contraciual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the {inancial assct are transferred or in which the company ncither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain conirol of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it iransfers asscts recognised on its balance sheet but retains cither all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the iransferred assets, the transferred assels are not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substanlially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial assct, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial assct.
Where the Company refains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial assct.

Financial lability

The Company derccognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
The Company also derecognises a [inancial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified
{erms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modificd terms is recognised at [air
value. The differcnce between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in statement of profif and loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either o settle them
on 4 net basis or to realise the asset and seitle the liability simultaneously.

. Impairment
(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not fair valued through profit or loss, Loss allowance [or trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured al an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assels with contractual cash flows other than trade
receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increasc in
credil risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECI.. The amount of ECL (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an im paisEil gailn or loss in the
Statement of Proflit and Loss. f&k" '
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Measurement of expected credit loss

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simpl ified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement
of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expeeted
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a f[inancial instrument.

Other finameial assets

In respect of its other financial asscts, the Company assesscs it the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credil losses, else al an amount cqual
to the lifctime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the visk of a default oceurring over the expected life of
the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
assel as at the balance sheel date with the risk of a default occurring on the [inancial assct as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial assel is determined to have low
credit risk al the balance sheet date.

Presentation of allowance for expected credil losses in the halance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assels

(ii) Impairment of non — financial assets

The Company's non-financial assels, other than inventories and deferred lax assets are reviewed al cach reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication cxists, then the asset’s rccoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment tesling, assets that do not gencrate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating
units (CGUs), Fach CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or CGls.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted Lo their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the assct).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount ol an asset or CGU exceeds its estimaled recoverable amounl.
Impairment losses arc recognised in the stalement of profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates uscd to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the oxtent
that the asset’s carrying amounli does nol cxceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

H. Provisions, coniingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an out{low of economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected [ulure cash flows (representing the best estimale of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate thakrRectsburrent market
asscssments of the time value of money and the risks speeific to the liability. The unwinding of/#is fs¥yecognised
as finance cost. Expecled ﬁ1n15ﬂﬂmg)g\lnsses arc not provided for.

(]
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Conlingent liabilitics

A contingent liability is a possible obligalion that arises from past evenls whose cxistence will be confirmed by the
oceurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain {uture events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also ariscs in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recogn ised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does nol recognize a contingent liabilily but discloses its existence
in the financial stalements.

Contingent asscts

Conlingent assets are not recognised bul disclosed in the financial stalements when an inflow of economic henefits is
probable.

I. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services Lo customers/patients in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is
measured at transaction price net of rebates, discounts and laxes. A receivable is recognised by the Company when the
contral is transferred as this is the case of point in time reeognition where consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required. When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the
balance sheet as a contract assel or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance
and the payment. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each component of the revenue transaction
s sel oul below,

Income from healthcare services

Revenue from healthcare scrvices is recognized as and when related services are rendered and include services for
patients undergoing treatment and pending [or discharpe, which is shown as unbilled revenue under other current
[inancial asscts. The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business praclices lo defermine the
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company cxpects to be entitled in
exchange for the services, excluding amounts colleeted on behalf of third parties (for cxample, indirect taxes).

Income tfrom sale of pharmacy products to out-patients

Revenue from pharmacy products is recognized as and when the control of products is transferred to the customer. The
Company considers its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The (ransaction price is the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects (o be entitled in exchange for the products, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earncd over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash,
and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability™) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.
(ther income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective intercst rate method. The effective interest rate is the rale thal cxactly
discounts cstimated f‘uture cash receipls through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross-eaccying amount of
Faash Hows by
Fand similar

options) but does not consider the ¢ ad creditlosses.

considering all lhc conrmcma] term ”gf the m:ihﬂ\{ﬂ instrument (for ﬂ?ﬁlmi:'l‘- prepayment/ g
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J. Employee benefits
The Company’s ohligation lowards various employee benefits has been recognised as [ollows:
(i)  Short term employce benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., wages and salaries, shorl-term cash bonus,
ele., it the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employce, and the amount ol obligation can he estimated reliably.

(ii) L.ong term employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benelit plan under which an entity pays fixed coniributions into a
separatc entity and will have no legal or constructive ohligation 1o pay further amounts.

Provident fund and employee’s slate insurance scheme are defined contribution plans. These contributions are
recogniscd as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
services.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined coniribution plan.
The Company has defined benefit plan namely, Gratuity.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benelit plans is calculated by estimating the amounl of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current period, discounting that amount and deducting the [air value ol any plan
assets, if any.

The caleulation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

The Company determines the net interesl expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying
the discount tate used Lo measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning ol the annual period to the net defined
henefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest cxpense and other expenses related to defined benelit plans are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

T'he discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under delined beneflil plan, are based on the
market yields on government securilics as at the balance sheet date,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit thal relates to past
service ("past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recogniscd immediately in stalement
of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the seitlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement oceurs.

(iii) Other long term employee benefits — compensated absences

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employce benefils other than post-employment benefits is the
amount of future henefil that employees have earned in return for their service in the curren and prior periods; that
henefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any rclated assets is ded . The obligation
is measured on the basis ol a {EFlcAndependent actuarial valuation using the pr i ey
Remeasurements gains or losse i-ﬂl rccngﬁ?&é}.i n statement of profit and loss in the periogh] op-Erise.

* !
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K. Income tax

Tncome tax comprises current and deferred tax. [ is recognised in statemend of profit and loss except to the extent thal
it relates to an item recognised dircetly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Currenl tax

Current tax comprises the expeeted tax payable or reeeivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment {o the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimale of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
taxes,

Current {ax assets and current tax liabilities arc offset only if there is a legally enlorceable right to set ofl the recognised
amounts, and it is intended Lo realise the asset and scitle the liability on a nel basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deflerred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred fax assels are
recognised to the extent thal it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measurcd at the (ax rates that arc expected (o apply to the period when the assel is realised or the liability
is seitled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred (ax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting dale, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assels and liabililics are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offsel current fax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entily, or on dillcrent tax
cntities, bul they intend to settle current tax liabilities and asscts on a net hasis or their tax assels and liabilities will be
realised simultancously.

I.. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiel operating
decision maker. The Company’s Managing Dircctor assesscs the financial performance and position of the Company,
and makes strategic decision and has been identified as the chief opetating decision maker. The Company is engaged in
{he business of providing rental services, which has heen defined as one business segment. Accordingly, the Company's
activities/business is reviewed regularly by the Company's Managing Director from an overall business perspeclive,
rather than reviewing its services as individual standalone components.

M. New and amended standard adopted by the Company
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companics (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are cffective 1 April
2023:

. Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments to Ind AS |
. Definition of accounting estimates - amendinents to Ind AS 8
. Deferred tax related to asscts and liabilities arising from a single transaction - amendments to Ind AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS notificd by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications,

‘These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected
to significantly affect the current/@rlvfpse periods. Specifically, no changes would be necessdiyfds (@ gpusequence of
amendments made Lo Ind AS m&:\um pany’s accounting policy already complies ::5' '
lreatment. Vet
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in INIE million, unless otherwise stated)

d. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehald Flant and  Furniture and (Mfice Medical

Computers

Particulars . i . . g Tuotal
improvemenis cluipmenls litlings Eojuipmenis equipments and servers

Coross carrying valoe

Balance at 01 April 2022 130.37 372 330 1.33 113.73 518 257.63

Additions during the year 431.90 707 16,72 045 120,92 1233 6679

Balance at 31 March 2023 562,27 1,74 20.02 L L 23405 17.51 024.42

Additioms during the year 13.63 .01 366 219 5287 1.07 104.43

Balance af 31 March 2024 575.20 11280 2368 - 1037 287,52 18.58 1,025.85

Accnmulated depreciation

Balance at 01 April 2022 3187 1,50 1.62 (.96 16.33 177 56.14

Adlditions during the yeur AR00 13.81 .84 228 3126 4.64 9783

Balance at 31 March 2023 TI3HT 1540 A 324 47.59 f.41 153.97

Additions during the year 5477 19.13 4.40 2T 46,440 6,10 133.64

Balance at 31 March 2024 1285.64 34.53 .92 550 44,05 14.51 287.61

Met carrying value

As at 31 March 2024 447.26 78.27 13.76 4.41 193.47 4.07 741.24

Axat 31 March 2023 48840 06,59 14.56 4.9 18706 9.10 770.45

MNoles:

o) Refer note 17 Tor infoomation on property, plant and equipment pledged as scourity by the Company tor sccuring financing facilitics from banks.

by Refer note 32 for information on capital commitments.

!
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MNotes to the Finuncial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al anounts ave in INK million, unless olherwise stated)

5. Hight-of-use asscts and lease liahilitics

Information about leases fog which the Company is 8 lossee is presented below!

Parliculnrs

Right - of - use assels

{Totul)

Building
Balpnee at 01 April 2022 489,99
Lepreciation charge fug The vear (1190
Balance at 31 March 2023 47500
Depreciation churge for the year (11.83)
466,16

Ralance at 31 March 224

“The fullowing is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024,

T.ease linbilities

Parliculars
Ralance at 01 April 2022 71131
Inleresl expenses T2
Payment of lease liabilite (A3.60)
Balance i 31 March 2023 739,98
Interest cxpenses 7542
Paymeni of leass linbility (442
Balance at 31 March 2024 77113
Current -
“As at 31 March 2024 4561
Asan 31 March 2023 4213
Non - current
Asat 31 March 2024 T725.52
s at 31 March 2023 69785

“Ihe Company is not exposed tn future cashflows relating Lo extension { termination aptions, residual value guaraniees.

A, The following are armounts recognised in Statement of Profil and 1.oss:

Particulars

Fur the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Depreciation of right-ul-use assats (refer nole 28) 1193 11.90
Interest expense on legse labilites (refer note 27) 7542 ma
Fent expense relaling Lo short-term leases and low value assets 648 628
Total 93,83 45
B. ‘The total amount of cashflow on evcount of leases for Lhe year has been discloged in the cush flow statemenl.
C. The table helow describes the natwe of Company’s leasing activities by Lype of right-of-use asset recognised on the halance slest
As at 31 March 2024 - ) -
Mo, of right-nf-use Haoge of remaining term  Average remaining lease Mo, of leases wilh Mo, uf lenses with

Rigzh Rty i s
IEWE of wac perely assets leaged {in years) term [in years)

cxlension optinns

[ermination wplions

Luilding
[Tospital 1 3519 349.19

L

1

As at 31 March 2023

ight of us ;
Right'of e o nssets leased {in years) ferm (in years)

Mo, of right-of-use Range of remaining term Avernge remaining lease Moo of leases with
extension oplions

Mo, of leases will
terminalion options

Ruilding
Hospital 1 40,19 40.19

1

The Company determines the leases torm as either fhe non-cuncellable perind of the lease and any additional perads when there 15 an enforeeahle optien to extend the
lease and it is reasonally cortain Uil the Company will extend the leom, or 8 lease pecied in which it s reasonably certein that the Compuny will not exercise a right to

\erminate, The less tem is reassessed if thers is a signilicant change in cicumstanees.
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Mates to the Finunelal Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts ave in INK million, unless olherwise stated)

D The sable helow provides details neguding,

the contracleal manritics of lease liahilities as @l 31 March 2024 and as at 31 M ¢h 2023 on an undiseounted basis:

Particulars Asat i “_'
Z 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than one ye 47.96 44.27
After one year but not longer ian five years 21307 205.00
More than five yeuws 5,027.28 508532

__5,286.31 5,332.59

Tatal

F. Summeary of significant leases:

Pursuznt to the proposal by Heavy Engincering Cosporation Lid (hesein
helding company (Faas Tealtheare Private Timited), wis awarded with o
concession apreement, dated 16 January 2018, HEC hand over fhe castng hospital with 50 beds

after referred Lo as "HECY), @ peblic sector undertaking, the Company, througlh & hid by ils
he contract to build and operate @ multi-specially hespital in Renchi. As per the lsons of the
to the Compay along with Qe land adjacent 1o it to build a molti-

specially hospital of 300 beds. During the tenuse of the agreement, the monthly renl is azgregale o fixed rmonthly renlal a5 well us fixed pereentage of the revenue of this

it of the Comgany

Therafare, the lease desd has been executed by and between HEC and P
Premises for a term of 35 years extendable to 10 years (len years) on spms 120

Brund name of Paras HEC [lospital,

6. Capital worl-in-propress

aras Healtheare {Ranchi) Privale Limited {"PHRPL") dated 15 August 2009 to vecupy the swid
s & condilions and the PHEPL shall run and operatc a mulli-specialty Hospital in the

Parlicolars

As at A oal

Tl ) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the yvear 46,23 27591

Add: additions during the ye 93,93 413.12

Less: amount cepilalised during the year (130.55) (642 R0)

Balawee at the end of the year 9.61 46.23

Motes

The costs that are directly allibutable to the acquisition or cunstruction of propeely, plant

(a) Capital work-in-prog ess amzing schedule as at 31 Marcl 2024 and 31 March 2023

und equipment has besn capitalised during the year, refer nofe A3,

Particulars

Amaunt in capilal work-in-progress for a period of

i Total
o Less (lvan 1 year 1t 2 years 2 1g 3 years Move than 3 venrs
31 March 2024 .61 - - 2610
31 March 2023 0.2 591 - 46,23

() Capilal wark-in-progress includes properly, plant and squipiment wnder consliucti
() Thewe are no such projects in progress, whose complelion is everdue or has exeeeded it cosl compans

7. Intangible nssels

an, instatlution and enst of wssel not ready for use as at your end.
o tor ils original plan as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

; Asal As at
s lns 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Softwarcs
A, Grross carrying amount
Balanee at the begining of the year 1.53 (IE]
Additions during the yem - 045
Balunce at end of the yenr 153 1.53
B. Accumulated amortizativn
Ralance at the beginning of the yenr 1,29 .95
Additions during the year .16 0.31
Lalance at the end of the year 1.45 1.2%
Met carrying value 0.08 24

(Thiz space s bean intentionally left blank)
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Moles to the Finaneizl Statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024
(All amounts sre in TNR million, unless atherwise stnfel)

4.

1,

1L

Chilier financinl nesels

Man current

Current

Particulnrs Asat
31 March 2024

Asgat
A1 March 2023

As al
A1 March 2024

Ax ol
31 Mareh 2023

Tnsecured, considered pood

Security deposits 0.54 063 - -
Condrac asscts- unbilled revenue {refer note 400 - - AL T.68
Cither reccivables o - - 0.07 0.07
Tutul .54 0.63 €17 T.75
Mt current tax ussels
Farticulars ) onl
S 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ineame-tax receiville (et} 10.49 4549
Tulal 1449 4349
Oitleer assets T
Mon current Clurrent
Particulurs As at Asat A at Asat
31 March 2024 31 Maveh 2023 31 Maorch 2024 31 March 2023
Tinsecured, considered good
Capital slvances 180 |2 - -
Prepaid expenses = & 085 0.72
Advances to cmployees - - 1.0 082
Aalvineea to suppliers e - - 0.31 0.%1
Total 150 158 1.16 .33
Inventories
As ol Asal

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 Murch 2023

Valued at lower of vost or net realisable vulue

hedical drugs * Froa 15.13
Stores and consumahles * 315 273
Total 2517 17.86
# Includes provision for obsolets inventory amounting to THNE 2,59 million (31 March 20525 Mil)
12, Trmde receivables
Particulars et fsul
S 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unitisputed trade receivihles
Considered pood, unsecured 153775 A2
Credit impuired 4.7 -
142,49 042
Less: Allowance for expected credil Inss (rofer note 59)

Considered good, unsscure (4.32)

Cresfil i paired ALY -
Met trade receivahles 135.43 ELN
T'rade veceivables apeing schedule as af 31 March 2024

T Ouatstunding far following periods from dute of invoice
Particulars Less than & i manths to 1 More than 3 Tutul
1 Lo 2 years 1o 3 years
miitha year yeurs
Undisputed trade receivabiles
Considered good, unsecured 7700 4267 1808 00 - 137.75
Credit impaired 2 Rl - €74
“Tatal trade receivables 79.70 44,66 1808 (G 142,40
[ e Allowance for expocted credit luss (refer note 39}
Crnsidered po, uisecured - (176} (133 (0,03} - .32
Credit impatrment (2.7 (2.04) - - - 4.74)
Net trude recelvables 7700 A0 8G 15.55 o2 - 133.43
Irile receivables agving scliedule as at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following perinids from date of invaice
Particalars Loess thon i & months fu 1 Maore thun 3 Tutul
1-2 years 2-3 years
== wionths year YELrS :
Undlisputed trade receivables
Considered good, wnsecured XraAT 291 (.04 - - 3042
“Total trade receivables 2747 291 0.4 Az

1. There are no debts dus by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or joinily with any other person or debts due by firms or privals companies

respeetively in which umy diveetor is 2 pariner o discctor ar o member.
2. There arc na disputed or unhilled trade receivables, henee the sume is nat disclosed in the ageing schedule.
3. The Company's cxposure Lo vredit risks and loss allovwanee related w inide receivables 15 disclosed in mote 359,

fd_r_-_‘n ""”%}

o

(s wpace fox been intentiamdly Tefi biant)




Puras Mealtheare (Ranchi) Privite Limited

CIM: TASLINHRZOTTFTONT2082

Maotes to the Vinancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ANl amonnts nre in INR millio, unless nlherwise stated)

13, Cash and eash equivalenis

Partienlars

Asal
31 Miareh 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Balanoes wilh hanks

- im current gecounls 4,54 B30
Cosh on hand 0.6% 0.37
Taotal 513 8.67
4, Mank halanees wiher than cash uid cash equivalents

AR at Asul

Farticul
e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deposits with ariginal maturity more than three ionths bl remaining maturity of less hin twebve months® 1.oo 095
Tolnl 1.00 A5

& Ineludes carmarked balances of 1418 005 million (31 March 23 M 0.05 millon).

(This spaee hos beew inteationally fefi blunt)




Puras Healtheare (Runchi) Private Limited

CIMN: USSLI0IRZMTETCOT2032

Motes fo the Finaneial Statements e the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN annunts are in INH million, unless stherwise stated)

15

a)

by}

)

d}

&)

f

Equity shure capital

; Asar 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2013
Partleulars J F
Mumber ol shares Amaunt  Number of shares Aanount
Authorised shaore capital
_I‘.v:|l|i|:." shares of [ME 1. cach - Lid, o i 101,000 (R TH]
L0 HHE k10 Tk “.'Ell
Issned, subseribed and fully pail-up shares
Equity shires of THT 1075 euch, (ully paid op 10, e 0.140 10,000 Q.10
10,000 0.0 10,000 0.1
Revonciliation of authorised share capital ontstanding at the beginning and end of the yenr :
. Asat 31 Murch 2024 As at 31 Mureh 2023
Farticulars
Mumber of sliares Ampount  Mumber of shares Anunt
A the bepinning and end of the year 1080 0.14 L g 0.1n
Recnncillation of eyuity enpital outstanding ni the heginning und end of the year ;
Particulurs As af 31 March 2024 Asal 31 March 2023
Momber of shares Amount _ Number af shaves Amount
At e beginning and end ol s year 140,016 0,10 1i,000 (.0

‘I'ie vlghts, preferences and restrictivns (o each elass of shares including restrictivns an the distributivn of dividends and repayment of capital (for all sharcholders).

e Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 100 per share, Bach holdes ol eqquity shares is entitked 1o enc vete per shure with a right to receive por
share dividend declared by the Company. In the evenl of liquidation, the exquity sharcholders are entitled to receive remaining azsets of the Company in the propertion of eguity
sharzs hedd by the sharchalders.

Dietuils of shares held by shavelolders hulding ware than §% of the aggregate shares in (e Company;

Partivalars Asat 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares % of holding Mumber of shares % af halding
Equily shaves of INR 100 ench fully paid held by
Paras Healthears Private Limited (including nomince shareholders) 16100 10 10,k 100%,
Dietails of shures held by promoters of (e Company:
Prrliculars e As at 31 March 2424 Asat 31 March 2023 Y change in
Mumber of shares % of holding  Mumber of shares % of holling sharchohling
Fruity shares of INH105~ each fully paid Debd by )
Paras Healiheare Private Limited {including rominee slaneholders) 10,000 100% 10,000 100% -
Farticulars = As at 31 March 2023 As al 31 harch 2022 %, change in
Mumher of shares % of holding  Mumber of shares % of holding sharcholling
Fouity shares of 1NIRT0- cach fully peid held by
Paras Healihcare Privase Limited {incliuding nomines sharehnlders) 10,000 100% 10,000 LO0% -

Moles:

&) The above information is fimished as per shareholden egister of the Company as at the yeur enided 31 hiarch 2024 and 31 barch 2023
) Mo ehanges in promota’s sharcholdings during (e respective yeirs,

v "Promaters” for the pupose of this disslosise means promaters s defined under Sevtion 209} of Compinies Act, 2013,

Aggregate nuniher of shares issned for consideration ofher than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date
‘I Company has ool issucd any shares pursnant to a contrul withaut payment being, veecived in cush, aloiled & fully paid up by way of hanus shires nor has there been any huy-
buck ol shares in the current year and immediately preceding five yeurs

(i et Tt been antentionally feft blang]




Parus Henliheare (Ranchi) Privote Limited

I UASTIOHI0 TR T 2032

Mates to the Finuncial Statements for the yewr encded 31 March 2024
(Al amoonis aree in TNI million, unless siherwlse stated)

16, Other equily

Particulars

Asat
31 blarch 2034

As ar-
31 March 20123

Tetained carnings
Balanee a5 af the beginning of e yes
[oss during the year
Add: other coanprelensive income for the ye
Ie-rmeasurement gain on defined benefit pluns {nel of )
Tnlance ns at the end of the yenr

Malure @il purpose of reserve

Retained enrnings

Retiined eqnings are the profils ¢ (Insscs) that the Compsny has made ull date, less any transfers o general

{95195} {546.67)
(126513 {404,723
{0.79) {0.05]
(1,277.75) (950,95

reserve, dividends o other distributions psid fo sharchebders. 1

includes re-messurement lass ¢ (gain} on delined hencfit plans, net of ks that will not be reclesified 1o Stutemend of Profit and Loss, Bedwined earnings is o fres reseve availabls

iy e Company and eligible (o distribution to shareholders.

[ eis sprce s beew intertionsily 1t blank)




Paras [ealtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

CIN: USSTIOHRZOLTPTCO72052

Notes Lo the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in INI milliun, unless otherwise staied)

17. Mon-cwrrent borrowings

As at Asal

Paticulsrs 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
.Eim:m'ud, al amartised cost
Term loans from hanks S60.38 500,00
Less: currenl maturitics of non-currenl borrewings (27.33) ~

53403 S00.00
Tnsecured
T.oan from halding company 1, 115.10 860.71
Total non-currend borrowings L64%.13 1,366.71

Terms of repayment and security details:

Nature of Seeurily

Terms of Repayment

“2) Rupee Term Loan from Bank A

0 IME 50000 million (31 March 2023: NI 500.00 millivm} are sccured
primarily by

2. Exelusive charpge by way of hypothecation over 2ll movable sssels.

b. Cxclusive charge by way of ypothcoation over all current assets, present or
fulure.

c. Unconditional and irrsvocable corporate guaranles of Pacas Healthcere Private
[imiled.

Repuyable in 28 installmenls aggregating to INE 500.00 million.
Rate of inlerest at 5.75% poa. Lo B.2R% p.a (31 March 2023 : 5.75% p.a.

to §,72% p.a)

i) IR 6138 millions (31 March 2023: Mil) arc scoured pn:murily by:
a. Exchesive charge by way of hypothecation over speeific medical equipments,
b. Corporate puarantes of aras Heallhcare Private Limnitexd,

Repayment ranging from 78 1o 79 installmenls aggregating to INK

6138 million.

Rale of interest &t $.09% poa (31 March 2023; Mil)

‘Notes:
1. Duees trom related party are as under:

Rate of Interest Asal As al
- Relale Repayment terms
NamenfRclated parly PEr annim S 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Paras Heallheare Private Limited 9,054 Repayable in five equal annnal installments 111510 R66.71
afler initial moratorium period of six years
slarting from 20719-30,
2. Wtilisation of borrowings
(1) During the year, the Company has osed the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was laken at the balance sheel date.
{b} Tulal undrawn term loan facilily as at 31 March 2024 amounts to INK 36,33 million (31 March 2023 @ Nil).
17TA Current borrowings )
Asal Asat

Tarticulars

31 Mavch 2024

31 March 2023

Secured, at amortised cost
Current maturitics of non-current borcowings (refier nole 17)
Total

Mote:

2735

27,35

{a) Total undrawn overdralt facility as at 51 March 2024 amounts L TME 50.00 million (31 Warch 2023: INR 50.00 millicn)

(Thix spece has bean intentionally feff blank)




Paras Healthoare (Ranchi) Private Limited

CIM: URSTIOHRIGITRICO72032

Mates ta the Financial Statements for (e yenr ended 31 March 2024
(Al mmounts are in INE million, unless otherwise shuled)

18, Oilier financial liabilitics

Mon corrent Current "

Particulars Ay al As al Asal Az at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Payable for purchase of propeily, plant and cquipmenl - - 2236 44.95
Fmployees payible - = 1.71 113
Securily deposits 0.50 1.50 - -
Tutal 0,50 1.50 24.07 46.08

1%, Provisiuns
MNon enrrent Current
Particulars o As at Asgat A oat Asoal

31 Marel 20244

31 March 2023

31 Mareh 2024

31 March 2023

I'rovisinn for crﬁpluycu benefits

Provision for pratuity (refer nole 36) 1.73 1.01 019 0.25%
Provision for compensated ahsenees (refer note 36} 279 1.0 |66 1.8
Tatal d.52 LUl 145 1.335
20, Trade payables
Ay oal Asoal
Parti
srtiEmlar 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outslanding does of micro wnd small enterprises (MSKEY. and 1397 2.55
Tolal ouistanding dues of creditors other then mivie and small enterprises 157.22 14268
Total 191,19 152,23
Motes:
a) The Company's exposure to currency und liguidity risks relnted Lo Liade payables o diselused in note 30
h) For liade payables owing o mivee and small enterprises, refer note 11,
Trade Payable apeing schedule as al 31 March 2024 i
Particnlars . i Outstanding for following perivds [rom fhe date of inveice Total
Tinhilled Less (han 1 year 1 40 2 years 2103 vears  More than 3 years
Undisputed trade payables
MEME - LR - - - EERF)
Oithers 10147 5362 Ll 0.01 001 15722
Tatal trade puyalbles 147 A0.50 011 n.anl 0.0l 190.1%
Trade Payable apeing schedule as at 31 March 2023
Marticnlars Outstanding fur following periods from e date of inveice Total
o Tnbilled Less than 1 year 110 2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 years T
Undisputed trade payables
MEME - 055 - - - 055
Uthers G248 s0.14 (.01 - (105 142.68
Total trade payables 9148 59.69 0101 - .05 152.13
“There are no dispuied trade payables, henee the sume is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
11, Other curreat linbilities _—
Particolars ik Al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stutulory dues payahle 14049 10.12
Total 10.12

(This space has been intemionally left blank)




Paras Healtheare (Ranchi) Pelvate Limited

CIN: USSTHIHRZOI7PTCOT2052

Mates to the Finaneial Statements for (he year ended 31 March 2024
(A maunts are in TN million, unless otherwise staled)

21 Revenue from operalions

Farticulars

Revenue oo sale of services - Tealthoure
Operaling income - in palienl deparlment
Clperaling inceme - vul pelient department

Revenue [rom sale of product - Pharmacy

Sub-tatal (A)

Other aperating revenne
Serap sales
Sub-tatal (B}

Tatal (A 1T

Mote: Reler nole 40 for revenwe relaled disclosures.

23, Orther ineome

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

713,54 40RO

96.87 16,66

3616 12.42

B46.57 389,94

- 0.12 0.13
iz .13

86,69 39007

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Murel 2024

Interest income

from hanks

tromm income tax retund
Other non operating income

Mizscellaneous income
Tatal

24, Purchases of stock-in-lrnde

Particulars

Purchuses of stock-in-lrads
Total

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

004 0,59
0.23 0,11
0.87 0.24
114 1.34

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Fow the year ended
31 March 2023

Suh-total (A)

Sub-total (B)

19614 9494
v 156.14 94.96

25, Chuanpes in inventvrics of stock-in-trade
For the vear ended For the year ended
: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inventories at the end of the year 2202 1513
1202 15.13
Inventories al (he beginning of the vear 5 ii 15.13 253
1513 1.53
MNel change (B-A) {6.59) (12.60)

6. Employee henefits expense

Particalars

Salaries and wages

Coantributicn o provident fum] und other funds (refer nole 36)

Stall wellore expenses
Total

For the year ended
31 Muarch 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2013

13112 541
827 5o5
6,72 444

146,11 9540

Maote: The costs that are divectly atlributable Lo the soyuisition or construction of property, plant and equipment has heen capitalised during the vear, refer note 43

{Thix space has been intentionally eft blank)




Farps Healtheare (Ranchi) Private Limiled

CIM: URSHINHRZO17PTCOTINGZ

MNotes to the Vinancinl Statements tor the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al imounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

17. Tinance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

Far the year coded
31 Muarch 2023

Tnterest expense:

- D horrowings

- O lease labilities

- O Joans from releled pamy
Oiher borrowing cosls

Tntal

40.94 18.75
75.42 7227
80.58 68.68
L12 E
198.06 159,70

4. Depreciation and amoriization #xpenscs

Particulars

Fur the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1epreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Amortization of intangible assels {refer note 7)
Neprecialion of right-of-use assels (refer note 3)

Tuotal

133.64 9783
116 3t
11.43 11,440
145,73 110.04

19, (ther expenses

Parliculnrs

Far the year ended
31 March 20324

Faor the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Toswver, el and wales la.7% 14.67
Rent and facility fies 3554 2338
Fepairs and maintenance

- Buildings 0.58 0.9%
- Planl and cquipments 479 4.0
- Oithers 528 5.19
Huouse keeping cxpenses 3193 17.42
Laundry exgenses 425 2.04
Patient foud and boverage .24 5.E8
Outsourced medical sorvices A4.18 19.23
Security expenses 11.17 nAS
I.cgal and professional focs 147 1.0
Travelling and conveyance 504 572
Printing and stulionery 4.949 LER
Communication expense 1.57 077
Insurance 111 0.7%
Advertisoment, markeling and outreach sxpenses 2540 20.11
Payiments to awditor (including applicable luxes) (refer note beluw) 117 094
Luss allowanes 2.06 -
Bank charges 295 220
iscellaneous expenses 10l TO0E
Tuatal 21862 141.52
Mote: Payments to auditor

As auditor:

Audil fees (inclusive of tuwes) 112 .39
Reimbursement of cxpenses 005 0,05

117 0,94

(This space has been infentionally left blank)




Paras Healtheure (Hunchi) Private Limited

CTN: USSLIOMR 20T TP TCOTI052

Motes to the Fineneial Statements for the vear ended 31 harch 2024
(Al amounts wre In TNR million, uoless otherwise stuted)

3, Tax expense

) Ameunl recopnised in stntement of profit wmd luss

Far the year enided
31 Msreh 2024

Far the vear ended
31 Murch 2023

"Current tux
Dieterred fs credit (refer nole below)
Tux expense for the year

Iy

Tieqme tax recognised in other comprehensive income

For the yewr ended
31 Nlarch 2024

For fhe vear ended
31 March 2023

Be-measurciment of defined benelit plans

c) Teconciliation ol effective tax rate

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Vur the year -:udrl.i-
31 March 24123

Loss hefore tax {320.51) {4025y
Tax using the Company's domastic ruls 26.00% (B4 84) 6005 {105,109
Tax effect of:

- Others 26,00 .89 -26.00% 10510
_fl'ﬂ:cth‘c inx rule - - o ::

o) Recognized deferved tax assels and (liabilitics)
Diefierred tax assets and (linhilities) attribudnble to the following:
Asat As at

Particulars

31 March 2UZ4

31 March 2023

Dreferrel tnx assets / (linbilities) ©
- Lusszs anid unghsorbed depreciation
- Property, plant and squipment
- Provision for employee herefits
- Wight-oif-use assels
Tcasc liabilities
- Loas allowance
Met deferred fax asset

et delerred lax asset recopmised in the boaks
et delered tax asset unrecopnised in the books

MNaote:

29531 21999
{1.33) (6.15)
156 1.0
(1212 {124,307
2049 192 38
.36 =
377.29 28297
37720 242,97

Mo deferred tax msset has heen recognised by The Company us il is not probable that the Company would have significant lulwre Lavable profils o

dilferences.

€] Details of expiry related to lusses mnid unabsorbed depreciation:

As af 31 March 2024

ulilizz these fempuiny

|Parficulars 01 40 1 year, 105 years]  More than 5 years, Mo expiry dale Tatal
1 hua-l_'usnr'b-:d losses - 142231 Hd8 95 5 791.18
ITTnabsorbed depreciation - 344.62 34062
As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Uito 1 yen 1t _w.urﬂ| More thun 5 years Mo expiry date Total
Unahsorhed lnsses - 33.43! 61906 - 652,54
Unahsorked depreciation - b - 197155 193,55

(This apace fivs e batentionaliy feff Sk




Paras Mealtheare (Ranchi) Private Limited

CIN: USSTIOHRZ01TFTCO72032

Motes (o (he Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts are in INIU million, unless otlerwise stated)

3l

3.

Earnings per share (E'S)

Dasic EPS amuunts are caleulaled by dividing the profit{loss) for the year attributable to cquity holders by the weighted average number of equily shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profilfless) atirbutable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighled averape number of equity shares that wonld be izsued on Consversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares
it equily shares,

The following reflects the income and share dila used in the basic end diluted EPS compotations:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
- 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Weighted averape number of sharcs outstanding during the vear T 10,000
Met (loss) attributable to the equity shareholdess (326.51) (404.23)
Dasic and diluted saming per share (in INR) [Face valoe of INE 10/- cach] (3265007 (40, 423.00

Commilments and Conlinpgencies

o) Contingent liabilities not provided for:

The Company had received notice(s) amounting to [NE 27,50 million from Hewvy Engincering Corporation Limited (“HEC™) as liguidated damages in earlier
vears on accounl of the delay in opening of 30 bedided hospital, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement dated 16 Janvary 2018, The
Company hed replied (e such mdices from HEC and anticipate a favorable outcome in future. Basis the management’s assessment and supporled by the
externzl legal opinion, the Compeany has not made any provision for the said amount, in anticipation of that the outeome shall be Gwvourable snd no oulllow is
expecied npainst the same,

b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed which is of capital nature (net of advances) and which have not been provided for in the tinancial

statcments, amounts to INE 22 55 million (31 March 2023: TNR [7.51 million)

{Thiz space has haan infentionally left biank)




Paras Healthenre (Ranchi) Private Limited

CIN: UASTTOHEZ0 TP T 0722

Moles to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

33, Related party disclosures
In accordance with Tnd AS-24 on related partiss disclosures where conlrol exist and where transactions have taken place und description of the relationships s
idenlified and cortified by the management ure as follows:

Naluve of relationship Name of related parly
{) Holding Company Paras Healthcare Private Limited
(i) Fellow subsidiary Company Plus Medicare Hospitals Privete Limited {vw.e.[ 18 Octoher 2522)
(i) Key managerial personned of the Company D Shankar Murang (Dircetor) (upto 14 February 2023)

12r. Talat Talim (1irector) {upto 31 March 2023}

wr, Mridul Saxena {MNon Executive Dircetor) (uplo 26 Mecember 2022)
Mr, Rakesh Eumar Singh (CFO) (w.e.f 20 July 2023)

Mr. Vaibhay Ashok Doshi (Mon Exgcutive Director)

pr. Mikhil Sharme {Director) (w.ef. 28 July 2002}

M1, Adikunda FBehera (Mon Cxecutive Director) (w.e.f 31 May 2025 upto
25 April 2024)

D, Santy Mesliyanickal Sajan {Director) (w.e.f. 31 May 2023}

[3r. Mitesh Kumnar {Director) {(w.e. £ 31 May 2023)

Transactions during the year ended:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
2 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I.oan taken from Holding Company
Paras Healthcare Private Limited 167.81 15184
) 167.81 153.84
Ouisoureed medical services
Parus 1Tealtheare Privale Limited 387 -
3.87 -
Interest on lnan faken
Paras Healtheare Private Linvited 80,58 G608
BILSH HH.68
Managerial remungration
Short term employes benefils 314 -
Other long term benefits 0.01 -
Puost employment delfined benetits 007 n
3.22 -
Balanee outstanding s at the year end:
Particulars sl A
31 March 2024 31 Marcl 2023
Loan from Holding Company
Paras Healthcare Private Limited 111510 Bi071
111510 ~ HGGTI

Terms and conditions of related party transactions:

(1) The Holding Company has given bank guarantes of MR 7500 million as per the terms and conditions mentioned i the concession agresment entered with
Heavy Fnginesring Corporution Limited {"HEC")

{l3) The Folding Company has issued letter of suppart for financial assistance to the Company for ongoing projects und operations for a period of not less than 12
rnomths o the date of fnancial closure of secounts of the Company for the yeur ended 31 March 2024.

{¢) The Holding Company has provided a cororate guarantee tn bank on behalf of the Company for obluining loan by the Cempany.

Motes
) Al ransactions with related perlies arc made on the terms equivalent o those thul prevail in &rm’s length transactions end within the ordinary course ol
business. Oulslanding balances al respective year ends are wnsecured and setflement is generally done in cash.

b} The above information has been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on e basis of informig
upo by the auditons, QS"'
e




Parns ealtheave {Ranchi) Private Limited

CIM: USSLIONIRIMTRTCNT2032

Maotes to the Financial Statements for (he year ended 31 March 2024
(ANl amonnts are in INE million, nnless otherwise stated)

34, Segment information

5.

The chief operating decisiun maker (COM) exumines the Company's performance from a service perspeclive and has idenlified the "Healtheare services' as a
single business segment. The Company is operating in India which conslilules a single geographical segment. The CODM reviews intemal management reports
lo assess the performance of the segment 'Heallhcare services', There are no tansactions with u single external eustomer which would amaunl Lo len pereent o
mare of the Company’s revenues.

The Company has incurred a loss of TNR 326,80 million during the eurrent financial year and hes acoumulated losses of MR 1,277.75 million al the year end
resulting in negative nel worth of MK 127765 million. The Compuny has received & letter of support from Parus Hewllhears Private Limiled, the Holding
Company fo provide fnancial and operational support fo the Company as is necessary to cnsure thal the Company conlinue o a going eancern basis for next one
year from the dule of fnancial closure of the accounts of the Company. Fusther, as explained in Note 17 & 174 of the financial satements the Company hus
undrawn facility emeunting to INK 86.33 million s at 31 Murch 2024, Accordingly, the Company has prepared Lhese financial stalements on a going concern
hasis,
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)

k)

L

Employee henefits
“The Compiny contributes to the following post-crployment defined benefit plans in Inds.

Nefined contribuiion plans
The Company has recognised the following amount in (e Statcment of profil and loss:

Particulars For the year eaded

For the year coded

31 March 2024 31 March 2013
Employer's contrilation to L-Zrnp]uyue-'ﬁ Frovident Fund TAR 502
Emplovers contribulion 10 Employees State Insurance 0.79 0.53
Tntal _ q17 5.55
Oilier lang-term employment henefits
The Company provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Company which can be earried forward t fiure year. o
Azl Asat

Tarticulars 31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Present value of ebligation a5 at the end of the year

Compensated ahscnoes 443 288

Current and non-current lahility bifurcation

MNon-current 279 1.80

(urrent 1.66 108
4.45 288

Defined benefil plans

The Company provides Tor gramity for employess in Tndia as per the Fayment of Gramity Act, 1972, Employess who are in continuoos service for a period of' 3 years
are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity puyable on rerirement/tenmination is the employees Jast diawn hasic salary per month computed propodtionarely for

fillesn days salary multiplied fo the numbser of years of service.

{i} Heconciliation of present value of defined henefit oblipation

Al ILE.

Particulars sasl 3
o 31 March 2024 31 March 2025
Bulance al the beginning of the yenr .26 .50
urrent service cost 0.71 n45
Inlerest exponse 009 .03
Actuarial losses recognised in other comprehensive income nzg 003
Lienelils paid L (.43} {009
Balunce at the end of the year 1.92 1.26
(i) Met liability recopnised in the Balance Sheet
Axat As at
Tarframm 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Kon-current lizhilities L3 101
Current habilities 019 0.23
. 192 1.26
(iify Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Taoss
Particulars For the yenr ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 07 045
Inlerest expense 0.08 nas
.80 .50

{iv) Remeasurements recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Ineome (OCT)

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Actuarial loss on defined benelil obligation 0,29 0,05
_ 124 [

(¥) Actuarial ussumptions
Particulars As at Asoatl
31 Mareh 224 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.2 7.50%
Salary escalulion rate 5.00% 5.00%
Muorlality rate TALM 2012-14 [ALM 201214
Tetirement ige 38 vears 58 years
Withdrawal rate 35.00% 35.00%

A al 31 Marel 2024, the weighled averape duration of the defined benefit obligution is 20 years (31 March 2023: 18 years).

Thesc assumplicns were developed by management with the assistance of independsnt weluarial appraisers. Discount factors are det
refrence o government bonds of relevant economic markets and Lhal bave ferms o maturity approximating to the Lerms of the
are baged on management’s historical experience.
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(vi) Sensilivity analysis

“The below sensitivity analyses are based on & change in an assumplion while hinlding all other assumptions eanstant. In practice, this is unlikely o oceur, and changes
in some of the assumptions may he comelated. When caleolating the sensilivily of the defined benelil obligation to significant acluarial assumptions Lhe same methods
{present valug of defined benefit ohligation calculaled with the projected unil credil method at the end of the reporting period) has been applicd as when calculating
the defined henefit liability recognized in the bulance sheel.

The methods and rypes of essumptions used in preparing Lthe sensilivity analysis did nol changs compared to the privr period.

. : As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars — =
Increase Decrease Inerense Deerease
Dscount ride {1%) 1.87 1.97 .22 1.29
Salary escalation rate {1%) 1497 1.87 1.29 1.22
Withcdrawwl rate (1%0) (I 1.97 1.2 1.28

The sensitivity resulis above determine their individeal impact on the Plan's end of year Defined Henelil Obligation, Tn reality, the Flan is subject to mulliple extemal
experience items which may move the Tefined Benefit Obligation in similar or opposite directions, while the Plan's sensitivity to such chianges can vary aver Lirme,

{vii} Expected future cash [lews

“The table below shows the expecled cash flow profile af the bensfils o be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the emplovecs as al the

Particulars Asal izl
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Year | 019 0,25
Year 2 012 .10
Your 3 012 a.1n
Year d 014 a1
Year 3 0.13 009
Yeaur & cawards 1.22 0.62
1,92 1.6

The Company expects Lo contiibute THR 1.79 millions (31 March 2023 15 INR | 20 milliens) for post employment benafits during the nexl financial yeer.

Capital manngement

For the purpnse of the Company’s capital managemenl, capital includes issued equily capital, share premium and all other reserves alltibulable fo the equily helder.
“Ihe prinsary objective of the Company’s capital management is Lo maximize the shureholder value,

“The Comgsany monitars its net debl { equity ratin as well as compliznce with financial covenanls on regnlar hasts.

Particulars ghivksi fak

31 March 224 31 Mawch 2023
Total liabilitics 2,643.83 2,320.76
Less: cash and cash eyuivalents 523 867
Met deht L0TR.GI LAz
Tolal equity (1,277.65) (930.55)
Wet deht to equity ralio (2,10} (2.43)

The Compuny maniges its capital sructure and makes adjustments in light of changes in coomomic conditions. Mo chunges were made in the ohjectives, policics or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 51 March 2024 and 31 Miarch 2023,

(This spare s been infentionally left ok
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34, Fair value measurement and finnneind inséruments

(i} Financial instruments by category nmd Fir value hiecarchy
The fiallowing: exphins the judgements and cstimates mads in defesmining e P values of the financinl inssnments, Te rovide an indication about the reliability of the inpats used
determining fair value, the Conpny lis classificd its financial instruments ifo fhe foes levels preseribed under the accouniing smdard,

Lavel 1 antend prices (uadjusted) in ective markets for inaneal insonmeats.
Level 2: inputs other than queted prices meluded within Level 1 that are abservable for the sl o liabilily, cither direetly or indirectly.
Level 3: unobssraable mpusls foo the asact or liability.

Valuation techniques wsed to determine fair value

The fair valie of the financial assets und linbilities are inclided at the amoumt that wouht be received o scll an asset and paid to sl 2 Giebdlily G an crderly transaction belween
kel participants. The fallowing methods were used fo estinate the fair values

- Trade receivahles, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balwnces, oller cusent financial assets, trade payables sl oilier eerrent Anancial lnbililies: Approxinate thelr eamying
amounts larpely dus to the short-lenn walurilics of thess instramess.

- Mamawings taken by the Company are as per the Company's eredit and Tiguidity sk asscssment and thers is wo compasalile nstrument baving the similar lenns and conditicns with
related seourity beingr pledged and hence the carying vales of the borrowings vepnezents e hest cetimate of foir valee,

The fellowing tahle shows the carrving smonnts sid Fair value of financial asssts and fuancil labilites, including their levels in the firar valee higiasely.

As at 31 March 2024

Purticulnrs Carrying value Fair value nu::iguuemeut using
[ VTP Amaortized Cost Tatul Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Mun-=carrent

Oither financial assets 054 0.54 . 054
Carrent

Trade reccivables 133.43 133.43 - -
Cash and cosh egqurvalents 523 523 -
Hanik balances other than cash and cash squivalents 1.0 1 0y - -
Other financial psseds @17 217 - = |
Tudal 14937 144,37 054
Fhwancial liabilitics

Mom - corrent

Rarrowings 1,644 13 1, 649.13 - 1,6049.13
Leaze linbilities 11552 72352 - -
Ol Tnancial lighilitics .50 050 - 0,50
Current

eranwings X733 2755 - -
Leasc liabilitics 43,41 43.61 - -
Traale paryahles 191.1% 191,19 - -
Odler financial liabilities & 07 2107 - -
Tutnl 1,663.57 1.663,37 - 1,649,563
Asal 31 March 2023

\ Carrying value Fair value mensurement using
Marliculars = .
FVTPLE Amortized Cost Talal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financinl nssets

Mun-current

Oilher finaneial pssets 063 063 - 063
wrrenl

Trade reccivables 3042 30.42 -

Cush amdl cash equivalents 867 Ry -

Bank balances other than cash amed cish equivalents (.95 0.95 - -
Oither finameial assels 1.75 7.75 - -
Tatal 48.42 df.d2 - 1,63
Financial linbilitics

M = carrentl

Borrawings 1, 366,71 1,366.71 - 1,366.71
Laise lahililies G783 a97 85 - -
Oither financial liabilities 1,50 1.50 1.50
Corrent

Horrowings - - -
Lense labilities 42.13 4213 -
Tade payables 15223 152.23 - -
Cither fimamednd Halalilies = 1608 46, (8 -
Tulal 3 2,306,530 2,306.50 z 1,368,21]

“There have bees no ks hetweon Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

I Fair value throwgh profit or loss

Valuntion technicue for level 3

Discounted cash Hows: The valuation medel considers the present value of expecled payment, discounted using a risk-ncinsted discoud] EE‘ETE‘E' g

weseased 1o be insignifieant.

S
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Financial risk management

Tlse Comnpany has exposare t the follevang: nisks aising T Reaciz] instroments:
» Credit nsk ;

= Liepuiclily visk ;

= hMarket risk

Risk management framework

The Comgsny's Toard of directors has overall respomsibility foc the establishment and oversight of the Comnpang's visk management framework.

The Company's Tisk management policics anc cstablished to identif and analyee the risks Beed by the Company, to set appropriste risks limils aod contrels, and to monitor Tisks sl
adlicrencs to limits. Risk manszement policies me reviewed regulasly to reflect chanpes imomarked conclitions zand the Company's aotivities, The Comgany, Owough its traming amk
waragement slandards and procedures, gims fo maintain @ disciplined and constuetive contral environment in which all employees understand their reles amd ohligstions.

Risk Exposure arising from iMl:asnn'ml:ﬂT - Mhlanagement
Credit risk Trade reccivables, cash ond cash equivalents, Tank ha]ancu:s’ﬁgnjug analyzis Diversification of bank depusits mnd credit
uiher than casly and cash cquivalents and other Gumcial wseis limils anid regular mondtoring and follow)
ups.
Liguaiclity misk Borrowings, trade payables and ather foancial liabilities Cash flow torecasls Availability of commmitled cadit lines and
horvowing faeilities.
Parket nisk  inleres e Leng-term barowmys at vamable mles Scnsitivity analysis Diversification of bommowings |

Corelil risl
Credit risk s the sk of fremeial Toss 1o e Company i 8 costomer or comtespenly o o Gaancial asset fails to meet its contruetil obligatioes. The Campany’s exposure o credil
is influcnced mainly by e individual clanacleislics of cach financial asset. The cumymg amonnts of freneial assels represents the muimam sredil sk exposure.

A defalt on a Aeancial assed is when the comtenialy Fils 1o make contractual payments as per agreed leoms. This definition of default 15 detenmined ly eonsidering the buzmess
envirpmmend in which entity aperates and other mesro-econganic oo,

The Company has a credin risk managament pelicy in place to limit credit lusses doe 10 pen-perfemanes of counterparties. The Company moniters its exposure to credi risk on an

atigoing basis. Assots are written ol when there is s reazonable sxpectation of recovery, Where receivables are written off, the Company continues lo engage in enfarczment ativity
fon allenngal 1o recover the ducs.

Trade recervables

The Company closely moniters the crerdit-won hiness of the reccivables through intermal systems thal me configured to define credit limits of custonsers, terehy, limiting the credit risk
{o pre-caleulated amaunts. The Company uses a simplified aggroach (lifefime expeeted credit loss macdel) for tle puepose of computation of sxpevted credil lnss for trade receivables.
Lxpecied credit losses are measured on collzctive basis for ench ol the folkvwing categorics ©

Calegnry Inputs fur measurement of expected credit losses Assumptions
Gevemment Cullection againsl outstanding receivables in past yeirs Teend of eollections made by the Company aver & period of three years preveding
balance sheel date and considering defonlt 10 haive gcouned §f reecivables are mot
collected for less han tlues years.
Non-government
Corporites Collection against outstimding receivabiles in past years Trend of collections made by e Company over a penod of thres yens preceding
balance sheet date and consilenng defaull o have oceared if receivibles ae nol
collecled for less than threc years.
Third purty sdmimisisalors of | Collection against outssanding receivables in past years Trade receivables onlstanding for mire e three years are considered imecoverabile,
insurancs companiss Allwanee for cxpected credit boss on recenvalles outstanding for less than three yens
15 rewnpmised hased on expected deductions by third penly adiminisicators.
Oihers Customer wise trage receivables sl infonmation obtgined| Specitic allowance is meule by assessing party wise outstanding receivables based an
through sales recovery follow ups comiunication between sales fen sl cusiones:.

et awicd cash egrivalents and Hawk bolemces otler G coslt aod cash equivalents

Credlit sisk relsted 90 cash and ensh equivilents mnel ek deposits is mansged by only mvesting i depusits with highly rated banks and diversilying beuk deposits and accounts in
diffzrent Bk, Credit sk is considesad kow becavse the Company deals with highly cated banks.

(it Snieial ety
Cither Hramcial asets neasured at amaortized cosl inclades seconily depasits, eonract 2ssets and other receivables, Credil ik related to these financinl assels is managed by moaftaring
the recoverabiliy of sueh amoents continuausly, while at the same fane infernal contiol system arc in place to ensure the amasants ane within defined limits. Credit risk is considered low
beeanse the Company is i possession of the underlying asset {in case of sseunly deposil) mas per trade experience (in case of ydallal revenac from paticnt and other receivables
fron revenue sharng arangements), Furiler, e Croapany croates provision by assessmg meivathil Risneial assct for cxpeetation of any oo mebasis 12 manth expected credi
s el

(This space has beew imtentioncally 1 Wank)
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a)

[}

c)

Credit risk exposure

Expected credit loss for trads revenables il simplificd appeoach i.e. provision madrx apmaach using historical trends.

Anal 31 haveh 2024

Nom-government

- Thirl parly
Purliculars Crvernment ini
! Caorporates “ ":::::::::l“ o Oihers Tulal
) conpanics
(Gross carrying valus 11452 41.83 16 1 684 1432 4%
Leas: Expected credit loss (impamnent) [3.34) [0:23) (74 (41.75) (500
Carrying anveunt (ret of impaivment) [11.18 4,70 15,446 2,019 133.43
A nE 31 Warch 2023
Mon-government
Third party
Particulars Covernment i
Corporatles adll}t];gmtxs ot Dihers Taotal
[t
i e
G cimnying value 1465 [ 14.12 (1.5 3042
Less: Lxpecled credil boas (impainnent) . - -
Carrying nmannt (net of impaivinent) 14,69 0.71 14.12 050 32|
Expected credit losses far other fimmcial assels (neasiwred at an amount equal o 123 meontbs expected coedit lsses)
As at 31 Alarch 2024
. Eﬁlulmntmi Eross Expected ereiit Car:'z.'.mg amount
Particulars carrying amount at ned of fmpalrment
losses i
- dlefauli prayisi
Casle and cazh cquivalents 3.23 - 50
Bank balances other tham cish send cash equivalents I.o0 100
_(__!I,h.e-.r Mmancial asseis 871 B 071

Asoal 31 March 2023

Estimatel grass

Fapected credit

Carrying smount

Particulars carrying amuount af net of impairment
Insses i
default provision

Cnsh and cash equivalents 847 - 267
Itk halances ather than eash and eash equivalerts 085 1, LLRE]
Odber fnancial assels R38] - B.1E
Reconcilintion of expected credit loss for trade receivables

Heconciliation of allowance for exproteld creadil loss Trade receivnbles|
As at 31 March 2023 :
Allpwanee for expected credit loss .06
As at 31 March 2024 0.0
Eapected eredit loss for trade receivable ns ot 31 March 2014

Farticular Less than & manths 12 yoar 1.3 year Mave than Total

4 nmithe to 1 venr 3 year

Giroas carrying amonnt -Trade receivalles (a) TN 44.66 18.08 0,05 - 142.49
Expected credit loss rate (%) ¥ 9% 144 G2% - %
Expecied credit lisses () 2.70 380 2.53 0,03 - M
Ml frade receivable (a-b) 77.00 Ai1.A46 15,55 0,012 - 13543
Experied credii loss for trade veccivable as at 31 March 2023

Purticular Lo Tame 6 manths 1-2 vear 2.3 year Ware iali Tkl

B muonthg to I year i 3 year

Girvss carrying amount -Trade receivnbles () 2747 R 0.4 7 .42
Expected credit loss rate (%) - - - - -
Expeoted credif losses (1) = : . £ - .
Met trmle receivable {a-b) 27.47 .91 0.04 3041
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(i) Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is ilse 1isk that the Campary will encouter difficulty in mesting the ubligations associuted with its Goancial labilitics that are setlled by delivering cash or wmnlhes
financial assel, The Curprey's aparazsch to mansging liguidity is to ensure a5 far as possible, that it will have sufficient lgoidily o meet Bs labilities when hey wre dae.
Management manitors rolling foreeasts of the Compary”s linuidity position and cash enel cash egnivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company ks into account the

lisgiclily of the market in wheh the Casgany aperates.

Mlwiurities of financial linbilities

The followinge are the emaining contractual matunies of fnancial liabilities ot the reporting date. The amounts are pross sl wndiscounted and inclucde estimated jnterest payments,

whiers applicable.

Cuntraclual cash flows

Asoal 31 March 2024

Updo 1 vear 1 yenar to 35 yenrs Over 5 years Total
Borrowings™ sl 173313 520.45 233300
| szaze liabilitics 47 21307 5002708 528831
Trade payables 19110 - - 19 1%
Oiher foancial lighilitics 407 0.50 - 24.57
ani F33,73 1,046,770 5,556.73 143716
Contractual cnsh flmws
AEiL I e It - Upla [ vear 1 yenrfo 5 yeurs Ower 5 yenrs Taotal
Bomrowings® 1038 1.216.52 331.08 205798
Lesaser lihilitica 1427 203.00 508532 5,332.59
Trade payebles 15013 - - 15223
Oiher Doancial liabilitics A6.08 LA - 4754
“Tatal _ 2396 142102 591640 7,500,3
* Includes current madunities of non-current bommowings
The Company als hiss acecss to the following imdiawn bosrewing from binks it the end of the reponting period e
Particulars il husat
: 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
“Tern b from hanks 36.33 -
Wodking capital loan 5000 S04
86.33 5000

i) Mlarket risk

harket sk i il risk fiat changes in marked prives - sucl as foreim axchange wles and interost rates — will affeet fhe Company’s income or the vielue of its boldings of il
instruments. The objective of warket risk management is b manage and control marke! nsk axpmmures within acceplatde prametecs, while optimizimg the retus,

a) Currency risk

Curseney rigk is the risk that the ftue cash flows of @ timaneial instosen will fectuste bevase of elianges in foreim sxchamge msles, The Company has mited exposiwe from the
imtermativaal warket a5 the Companys perations arc in India and e less fhan 10% of its revenne fum frcign eurreney from mleratisaal paticats. Also, capital expenditurs
includes capital goods purchazed in forsign comency thiough the overssas vendors.

The Company is ned exposcd 1o the offects of fuctstion in e provailing forsipn cnrency exchange rates on its fuaneial position and cash floves as there is no foreign curency

expOALRE 35 O epanmg dile
h) Inferest vate visk

Dbl ate sk is the risk that the G vaiue or fumre eosh fows of = Foancial instrument will Mectoade beeause of chanpes in nearkel intevest rates. The Company's intersst it risk

arses Trome-

- Borrowings which are made at market rte of imterest at the time of bomewigs,
- Bank deposits which are mide at market rate of inferest o (he time of deposit.
Thig exposes the Company Lo el flow interest rate nisk.

Faposure o Tnterest Rate Rish

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Fixed rate inslruments

Financial assets 100 a5
Fimuneial labulitics 1,115.10 6671
Yorinble vate instruments

Financiul Hitalilies 561.38 A00.00
Total 1,677.458 1,367.66

Cash flow sensitivity nonlysis foe variable-rate instruments

A neasonably possible chunge of 50 basis poiots in interest res al the roporting gate would bave inereased (decreased) squity s profit ar loss by the smouls shown below. This

amitlysis sessumea that all other vanables, in paticutar foreim comeney exchiange raics, remam constnl,

Effect in INE million

i psact on profit or (luss) nel of (ax
<50 bp increase S bp decrease

31 March 2024

Wanialile-rate instnuments [ERIE] 218
Cash Mow sensitivity {nel) (2.08) 208
31 Mlarch 2023

Wariable-rate instrumenis (1.85) | 8%
Cash flow sensilivily (net) {1.85) LBS
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4. Kevenue related disclosures

I Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue recognised mainly comprises of healthesre services, Sel oul below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue [rom contracts with custemers:

Description

Revenue from sale of scrvices - Healtheare
Cpcrating income - in patient department
Operating income - oul palienl department

Revenue [rom sale of product - Pharmacy

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Ior the year end ed
31 March 2023

Sub-total (A)

Other operafing revenue
Scrap sales
Sub-total {B)

T'otal revenue (A - 1)

I Timing of revenne recognition
The following table provides information ghout iming of revenue recopnition:

713.54 340.86

96,87 36.66

36.16 12.42

846.57 380.94

0.12 0.13

0.12 0.3

= 846.69 39007

Description

Far the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

At point in time 133.15 4911

At point over time i 71354 408G

Total revenue Bd6.69 390,07
I Contract halances

The following table provides information ahout inude receivables, contract asscis:

) As at Asat
Particnlars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
"Trade receivables (refir nule 12) 133.43 3042

.10 T.08

Confract sssels- unbilled revenue (reter note 8)

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred o the customer. Contract assets (unbilled receivables) are transfered

L receivahbles when the rights become uneonditional,

IV Significant changes in the conlract assets balances during the year are as follows:

articulars

Opening balance of Contract assets - Unhilled revenue
Less: Amonmt of revenues recognised during the year
Add: Addition during the year

Closing halanee of Contract nssets - Unbilled revenue

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
T.08 0.0z

(7.68) (0.02)

a.10 7.08

0,10 708

41. Details of dues (o Micro and Small Enterprises as per MESMED Act, 2006

Bascd on the information availeble with the Company, some of suppliers have heen identified, who are registered under the Micro, Small and Medivm
Enlerprises Development Aet, 2006 (MSMEI]} 1o whom the Company owes and the same is outstanding fur more than 45 days. The information has been
determined fo the extent such parties have boen identified on the hasis of responses received from supplicrs on confirmation sought by the Company.

Particulars

) The principal amount pmi)!n to suppliers al the year end
1) The amount of inferest due on the remaining uopaid amount to supplicrs as al the year end

¢} 'I'he smaunt of inlerest paid by buyer in terms of section 16 ol MSMED, along with the amount
of the payment made to supplier heyond the appointed day during each accounting year

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but bevond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the BASMED

&} The wmount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each accounting year
[y The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the suecceding years, uniil such

As at As al
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
3397 9.55

dlate when (he interest dues above arc actually paid fo the small enterprise, for the purpose of P\?‘E (R
dizallowanece of a dednctible expenditure under section 23 of MEMELD Aﬁw
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42, Ratio analysis and its elements

‘The following ure analytical ratios for the year ended 31 Mirch 2024 and 31 March 2023:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Tanilelor Hate 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 _Yarmmee
{a) Current ratic (1) 0,58 027 11467 |
(b Dche equity ralio () -1.31 -1.44 3.7 1%
(2] Dbt service coverage ralio (i) 0,20 -2 1a 109 28% 2
() Return on eguity ratio (%) [iv) -29.30%, -55.5940% 45.73% 3
(2} Inventary tumaover ratio () Ja2a 681 (.61
() Trade receivahle turnover ratio {vi) BTl 21.59 -5900%a 4
(E) Trade payable umnver ratio {vii} I.14 (.49 ZHHERY 5
(h) Met capital furnover ratio {wiii) -6.62 212 S21208% 6
(i) Met profit ratio (%) {ix) 356 103 63% 62794 7
{1 Beturn on capital cmploved rato (%) () -32.21% 58 A 4535% 8
(k) Return on investmenl ralio (%) (x1] MA MA WA

Heasons for variance
Reasons have been disclosed where the changes sre more then 25%

. Increase in purchase in current year bas resulted into increase in ratio.
_Increase in ales m corrend yeer has resulled into decrease in ratio,

7. Increase in sales in current yeur has resulled inte improvement in tatin.

. Increase in currenl assels incurrent year has resulted into inerease in ratio.

Increase in carnings available for debt service and debt service in current year hias resulted mtn improvement i ralio,
. Inerease in profit afler Lw and average sharcholders fund in current year lias resulted into improvement in ratio.
Increass in average receivables us compared to inerease in sales in currenl year has resulted info deerease in ratio.

8. Increase in earning hofore interest snd luxes in current year has resulted into incresse in ratio.

Motes ;
{i) Current ratio — Current assets’ current labilities
{ii} Deht Cyuity ratio — Total debt! sharcholders equily

{iii} Dbl service coverage ratio = Farnings availeble for debl service! debt serviee (rofer point (A) below)
(iv) Bedurn on Gyuily — Met profits after taxes / average Shareholder’s Equity

{w) Inventory turnover ralie — Sales / average inventory

{1} Trade receivables lucnever ratio = in patient department seles S average accounts receivahle
{wii) Trade payables tumover ralio = Met eredit purchases (comprise of purchase of stock-in-trade) / average trede payable

(wiif) Met capital tumover rulio - Nel sales! Working eapital
() Mt profit retio= Med profil’ Mel sales

() Return on eapital employed (ROCE)- Carning betore intercst and twces! cupital employed (refer point (B) helow)

(i) Reeturn on investment is nel applicable o the Company a5 no mvestment is held by the Company

Oher explanalory points

(A} Carning for Diebt Service = Met profil afler laxes 1 Mon-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Inlerest T other adjustments likes loss

on sale of PPE cte.
IJcht service = Interest & Lease payments + Principal repaymenls

“Mel Profil aller tax™ means reported amount of “Profil/ (less) for the perind” and it does nel include items of other eomprehensive Meome.

(B} Cupitul employed = Tanaible net worth + Total debt + Delerred tax liahilicy

{1hiz sporce hus been iniestionally feft blank)
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46,

Capitalisntion of expenditure incwrred during construction pervied
The costs hat are dicectly attributable to the acyuisition of certain property, plant and equipment are capitalised as under

" Ay al Asal
Parliculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance ) . 46.92
Incurred during the year:

Employes beneilis expense 622 17.71
Other expenses - 017
Finanze cnsts ; - 1.33
Tatal 6.22 Oy, 13
Less: Cxpenses capitalised to property, plant und equipment during the year - {66.13)
Cavricd forward to next linnneial year as part of eapitul-worle in progress 6.22 -

Oilier statutory information

The Company does not have any henami property and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami propery,
under the Benami Transactions { Prohibitions) Act, 1988 {13 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

The Compuny does not have any charge which is yet Lo be registered with ROC heyond the statutory periad.

The Company has nut advanced or provided loan to or invested funds in any entities including Tureign entities (Intermediaries) ur Lo any other persons, wilh the
understanding thal the intermediary shall;

(i) directly or indivectly lend or invest in olher persons o enfities identified in uny manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company (Ultimate Deneficiaries) or
(1) provide uny puarantee, security or the lke to or en behall of the ultimate heneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entilies, including forcign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether reeorded in
writing or ntherwise) thal the Company shall;

(i) dircetly or indirectly lend or fnvest in other persnns or entiliss identified in any manner whulsuever by or on behalt of the Funding Pary (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(i} provide any guatantes, security or the like on belalf of the ultimate heneficiaries,

The Company has nol undertaken any mansaction which is not recorded in the hooks ol aceounts that has been surendered or disclosed as income during the
yeur in Lhe lux ussessments under the Ineome Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any ofler relevant provisions of e Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not traded or invesled in crypto eumeney or virtual currency during, the eurrent and previous fnacial year.

The Company lias not been declared u "Willul Defaulter” by any bank or finunciul institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortiuim thereot,
in accordance with the guidelines on willul defaulter issued by the Heserve Dank of India.

The Company has complicd with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companics (Restriction on number of
layers) Rules, 2007,

The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companics Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
during the finuncial year.

The Compuny hus nol revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-ol-use wssets) o intangible assets or buth during fhe cumrent or previous
periods,

The Cumpany has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has un wecounting impact on current or previous fnancial year,

Events after reporting period
The Company has evaluated events and lransactions,which cccurred subsequent to the balanee sheet hut uplo the date of these financial statements. Thers arc no
rmaterial subscquent events which wre required to be discinsed.

The Ministry of Comporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring comparies which uses accounting software for muinlaining its books of sccoual,
shall use naly such seeounting softwars which has a feulure of recording andit trail of each and every teansaction, ereating un edil log of each change made in e
bnoks of neeount elong witl the date when such changes were made and ensuring thal the audil tail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses accounting software for maintenance of accounting and operulional records, Cmee the finunciul enteies are posted in such sollware, no
chunges ure ellowed in such posted enlries. Also, in casc of cancellation/reversal of such posted entries, sepurale entries are ereated in the application.
Additicnelly, the detailed log of events for master data changes are enabled wl application level

The audit teail foamre was not enuhled al the database level for aceounting software, to log any dircct dats changes.

{Thix space hay been infenifonally taft blmak)
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47, Previous vear fipures have been regronpedireclassifiod wherever considered nevessury. The details wre us follows:

For the year coded

For the vear ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 Adjusiments 31 March 2023
{Reported) (Reclassified]

Relziners and consullants fee - 206,62 6.62

(ther expenses 348,14 {206.62) 141.52

The impact of such reclassifications/regrouping is nol material to the coverall financial stalements.

The notes fo e financial siatement including material aceounting policy informativn and other explunatory information are an integral parl of fhe fimancial

statemenils.
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